
 1 

BURRILLVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
Meeting Place:  Jesse M. Smith Library, Community Room 
Meeting Date:  May 28, 2012 
Meeting Time:  7:00 PM 
 
 
Members Present: 

James Langlois, Chairman  Royal Laurent  
Edward Bonczek Mark Thompson, Alternate Member  
David Fontaine   
  

 
Members Absent: 

Jeffrey J. Barr, Vice Chairman   
  

 
Staff/Consultants Present: 

Michael C. Wood, Secretary Scott A. Gibbs, NEEDS, Inc. 
Timothy F. Kane, General Legal Counsel  
  

 
Others: 

  
  

Call To Order: 
James Langlois called the regularly scheduled meeting of the Agency to order at 7:03.  James Langlois 
requested that the minutes note that Jeffrey Barr has been excused from the meeting and that Mark 
Thompson will be a voting member for this meeting.  
 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
James Langlois noted that this item is tabled until the June meeting.   
 
 
Invoices: 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the invoice from AE Electric in the amount of $741.80 for 
replacement of bulbs and ballasts in streetlights in Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District.  
James Langlois stated that the situation has greatly improved from last year.  Langlois indicated that the 
replaced ballast is older and was not replaced last year.  Royal Laurent made a motion to approve the invoice.  
Edward Bonczek seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the invoice from Backgrounds by Maheu for signs in the 
amount of $2,105.  
Royal Laurent made a motion to approve the invoice.  Mark Thompson seconded the motion and the vote in 
favor was unanimous.  
 
 
Citizens Comment: 
None 
 
 



 2 

Consultants Staff Report: 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Financial Report including Budgets and Audits. 
David Fontaine stated that he had just received the financial report, which indicated $170,000 of available 
funds and revenues exceeding expenses.  David Fontaine made a motion to receive and file the Financial 
Report.  Royal Laurent seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. 
 
 
Old Business: 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District. 
A. Directory and Directional Signage 
Mike Wood stated that they received approval from RIDOT administration for the location of the Route 102 
sign.  Wood indicated that they are waiting for approval from the RIDOT Maintenance Division before they 
order the signs.  Mike Wood explained that they requested new quotes for the revised sign design and that 
the quotes are within a reasonable variance of the initial budget.  Royal Laurent made a motion to authorize 
fabrication of the signs.  Mark Thompson seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. 
 
Tom Kravitz stated that the sign to be installed on the Annex property would be delivered in two weeks.  
Wood explained that once the signs are installed, the size of the ladder signs would be determined.  Wood 
stated that the individual organizations would be responsible for procuring and paying for their signs. 
 
Wood inquired about the status of the sign for the canoe launch.  Tom Kravitz stated that the Blackstone 
River Watershed Council has requested the sign from Maheu.  James Langlois explained that he noticed 
several individuals lowering their canoe over the railing; thus they were unaware of the availability of the 
canoe launch.  The Agency requested a new sign be erected at Freedom Park stating that it is not a launch 
location.  Kravitz referenced the upcoming canoe event suggesting that the event should raise awareness 
about the availability of the canoe launch. 
 
James Langlois inquired about the interest of the Redevelopment Agency to sponsor the Farmer’s Market 
sign.  Edward Bonczek raised an issue regarding the level of support that the Burrillville Farmer’s Market 
has received and that given the relatively small amount of money to purchase the sign should be expected to 
fund their own sign.  Royal Laurent concurred with Bonczek’s comments.  Wood stated that the Farmer’s 
Market was the basis for receiving the funding support for the building in the redevelopment district.   
 
 
B.  Multi-purpose Playground 
Wood explained that the construction cost estimates included in the meeting package were reflective of the 
conceptual layout plan.  Wood presented suggested modifications including elimination of the concrete 
walkways around the playground/park to reduce project costs.  Wood stated that Christian Calderon is 
willing to advance $15,000 for initial phase and then look for grant money to fund the additional phases, 
which are estimated at a total cost of $54,500.  Royal Laurent inquired about insurance.  Wood stated that the 
property is owned by the Town and will be covered in the same way that all the other Town playgrounds are 
insured.  Wood explained that RIDEM will also have to review the playground improvements prior to 
approval of the project.   
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Geo-Tourism Project. 
Tom Kravitz stated that he has received the rack cards and that they look great.  Wood referenced previous 
discussions regarding additional locations for displaying the rack cards and inquired whether the BVTC is 
following up on those recommendations.  
 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Clock Tower Project. 
Mike Wood indicated that he is still working on an agreement with Scott Rabideau and that he doesn’t 
anticipate any obstacles to finalizing the agreement.    
 



 3 

Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Downtown Pascoag Project. 
Wood stated that a plan has been received to subdivide the Dunkin Donuts property and once the plan has 
been approved and executed, the Town can proceed with the improvements to the sluiceway property.   
 
Royal Laurent stated that there are some new businesses on Main Street.  Wood referenced the status of 
discussions between Garlick and Nardelli.  Kravitz informed the members that Garlick is scheduled to go 
before the Planning Board for approval of his Main Street development and may want to include the Nardelli 
project as part of the approval.  Wood cautioned that there has been no final agreement between the 
Redevelopment Agency and Garlick relative to the acquisition of the former warehouse property although he 
believes some acquisition estimate was included in Garlick’s funding application.  James Langlois made a 
motion that if needed, a letter of support for Garlick’s Planning Board application be provided by the 
Redevelopment Agency and that the Chairman is authorized to sign the letter.  Edward Bonczek seconded 
the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. David Fontaine recused himself from the vote and the 
discussion.   
 
 
New Business To Be Discussed And Acted Upon: 
None 
 
Correspondence: 
None 
 
General Discussion:  
None 
 
Executive Session: 
Request for Executive Session from Michael C. Wood, Secretary, pursuant to Rhode Island Open Meeting 
Law [42-46-5 (a)(5)] for discussion and considerations related to the acquisition, sale or exchange of real 
property. 

a) Plat 175/Lot 019 (Mobil Station Property) 24 North Main Street 
b) Plat 175/Lot 025 (Apt. House, Pascoag Main) 160 Pascoag Main Street 
c) Plat 175/Lot 060 (Apt. House, Pascoag Main) 73-75 Pascoag Main Street 
d) Plat 175/Lot 042 (Vacant Building, Substation building) 89-92 Pascoag Main St. 
e) Plat 192/Lot 17 (Dunkin Donuts site) 1 South Main Street, Pascoag 

 
James Langlois requested a roll call to go into Executive Session with James Langlois, Edward Bonczek, 
David Fontaine, Royal Laurent, and Mark Thompson all voting in favor.  
 
James Langlois made a motion to reconvene the public portion of the meeting and to note that there was one 
vote taken in Executive Session and to seal the minutes of the Executive Session.  Mark Thompson seconded 
the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous.  
 
Adjournment: 
 
On a motion by Langlois seconded by Royal Laurent, the meeting was adjourned at 8:00 PM.  
 
Minutes approved by: 
 
 
__________________________________                                _________________________________ 
Michael C. Wood, Secretary     Date: 
 
    Date filed with Town Clerk:  ________________________ 

            



 4 

        


